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IN THE COMMON PLEAS COURT OF DARKE COUNTY, OHIO

STATE OF OHIO, ex. rel. o CASE NO. 08-CV-64753
ATTORNEY GENERAL OF OHIO
Plaintiff,
vs. : JONATHAN P, HEIN, JUDGE
STATE LINE AGRI, INC, et. al. _ .
DECISION AND ENTRY —
Defendants. : Trial fo the Court

This matter came before the Court for trial on the complaint filed by the Plaintiff
on July 9, 2008. The State of Ohio was re;ﬁresented by Assistant Attorneys General Margaret A.
Malone, Aaron S. Farmer and Eri_ca M. Spitzig. The Defendantsﬁere représented by Jack A.
VanKlegr, Esq. Testimony was presented over the course of five trial days. An extensive numBer
of trial exhibits were admitted on behalf of both pérties}' [Efforts by couﬁsel to enter stipulations
and otherwise maximize courtroom efficiency were effective — and appreciated.]

The Court notes that it issued a decision on cross-motions for summary judgment
on November 17, 2009. Such decisic;n entered dispositive rulings on various causes of action.
Such decisions will be incorporated herein.

OVERVIEW OF CASE FACTS

State Line Agd, Inc. operates a livestock confinernent facility in Brown

Township, Darke County which raises épproximately 4,400 hogs from feeder pig size to market

weight. Based on the size of this facility and the number of buildings, regulatory responsibility is



vested in bbth the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency and the Ohio Department of
Agriculture. Regulations are set forth in the Ohio Revised Code and the Ohio Administrative
Code. | Further, the implementation of these regulations is documented in extensive documents
known as the Permit to Operate (“PTO”} approved by the Ohid Department of Agriculture
(ODA) and National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) péﬁnit apﬁrbved By the
Ohio Environmental Protec_tion Agency (OEPA). The regulatory purposes include prevention of
pollution into the waters of the State of Ohio and promoting use of best farxhing.zhaﬁagement
practices. Regulatory methods. include both self-monitoring by the Defendants and on-site
| inspections from regulators. The Plaintiff filed claims on beﬁalf of both ODA and OEPA.
State Line Agri., Inc. (SLA) is a corporation organized under the laws of the State
of Ohio and is owned equally Ey Rick L. Kremer and- his spouse. Mr, Kremer is solely
| responsible for operational and management decig@_o_ns rega;@ing corporate matters. This
corporation operates hog confinement facilities ig both Darke and Mercer counties. The facility
in Mercer County is west of Celina, Ohio, and is in the Wabash Ri_ve_r w_atershcd; the facility in
Darke County is south of Ansonia, Ohio, and s in the Stillwater River watershed. The PTO
applies to the Darke County facﬂity‘. The corppration _employ; varjous individuals to oversee
daily operations and j_:o qomplet_e required t.a_tsks ?_lSSi gne_;d_ by Mr. Kremer, includ_ing Richard
Fisher, _Who was cha;geq to oversee reco;_d _k__eepin_g and administrative duties.
| .St_a_tsling_R,esop:rce Mégage_ment, Iné. (_S LRM) i§ a limited liability company
organized under the laws of the State of Ohio, effective September 14, 2007. Before this date, -
' the entity was a fictitious (doing business a___s__) cntity, oper_ated by Neal Kremer under the SLRM
{rade name. Whﬂe there was some conflicting tesﬁmony, _the; Court finds that SLRM was owned
solely by Neal Kremer, son of Rick Kremer. [PL Exs 46,95.] Daily operational and
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management decisions for SLRM are made by Neal Kremer. Roman Kremer was employed by
SLRM to spread manure and assist in the business of SLRM. He was also employed by SLA for
livestock management services, and he received state certification in livestock management. [Pl
Ex. 36.]

SCOPE OF LIABILITY

The Plaintiff has alleged violations against four individuals and two legal entities.
For sake of clarity in éeciding the merits and extent of liability, the Court first considers the
scope of Hiability.

SLA i a corporation authorized to do business in the.State of Ohio. It entered
into the PTO with the OEPA. As acorpofafian, SLA is ligble for the consequebces of its
management, employees and agents for actions involving the opefation of its business purposes
and its assets.

Rick L. Kremer was the signatory of the PTO application and attested o the
accuracy of its contents; he signed as the “owner or operator” and attested that “the information
submitted is true, accurate and complete.” While these attestations do not establish individual
liability for actions of the corporation, such attestations placed on hir.g personal knowledge of the
stétutory and contractual duties .arising from the PTO. Further, from the testimony, it is clear that
all operational management decisions for SL.A were made By Rick L. Kremer; such is the
common practice for a closely held family farming business. If an operational event occurréd, it
was because he approved it; if an operational event did not occur, it was because he did not want
itfo occur. Within such a closely held management structure, there necessarily results the
imputation of liability to Mr. Kremer for violations of statutory and administrative codes. The

Court finds that Rick Kremer is individually responsible for all damages, monetary and
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injunctive, assessed herein. See Beivedere Condominium Unit Owners’ Assn. v. R.E. Roark
Companies, Irgc. (1993), 67 Ohio St.3d 274; Yo:—Can, Inc. v. The Yogurt Exchange (2_002); 149
Ohio App.3d 513 at § 46, 47; R.C. 6111.07,

Neal Kremer conducted the mamure distribution in February, 2007 at two
locations near Ansonia (the 36 acre tract and the 6 acre tract). Since the articles of organization
for SLRM as alimited Liability company were not filed. until S_epter_nber, 2007, he was acting as
an individual contractor for. SLA under j".be business name of SLRM. [P1, Ex;s...94A - 94D, 95.]-
Since SLRM was not organized until after the events involved herein, SLRM is not responsible

| for the actions of Neal Kremer prior to its organization. By operating SLRM in a regulated
business such as agricultural manure management, Ne_al Kremer held himself out as being
qualiﬁed and competent to conduct manure distn'bution practices as required by law.
Accordingly, the Court finds that Neal Kremer is determined to be responsible for any violations
of statutory and administrative codes for his conduct in February, 2007 (Counts IX to XIII, XV,
XV to XXIII) See R.C. 6111.07.

| Rpman Kremer primarily acted as an employee of SLA and SLRM during the

events involv?,d in tbls case. Although he is the son of Rick Kremer and brother of Neal Kremer,
he does not appear to have any operatio_nal_ management responsibilities for SLA or SLRM.
Roman Kremer ac};;gowledg_ed work experience with SLA beginning in 2000 and knowledge of
manure management regulations since 2004. On April 8, 2007, he applied for certification as a
livestpgk_ manager; his appii_caﬁoz_l indica@ed cc_)_mple_:ti_on of pre-requisite course work in February,
2007. [PL Ex. 37.] He t::c_cived t_:c;‘tiﬁcat_ion asa ﬁv_e_zstock manager in July, 2007. . The Court
finds that employment alone with SLA and SLRM prior to April 8, 2007 is an insufficient basis .
upon which tp place li_abil_i_ty fq: viqla_ti_ons of livestock management duties. Roman Kremer is
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determined to be liable only for any livestock management violations after April 8, 2007 since
his knowledge of regulatory requirements is only proven from that date forward. See R.C.
6111.07. | |

| Richard Fisher is the self described “Qperations Manager” for SLA. He was an |
independent contractor from Aungust, 2006 through August, 2008; he is currently an employee
and does not hold any corporate office for SLA. His duties are mostly administrative, inéluding
record ke_ep_ing_an_(_i regulatory reporting. While familiar with the PTO and NPDES agreements
[P. Exs 2 and 72], he was not a signatory to such agreements. He do'é_s possess knc.nirle'dge of
industry praétices due to a long history of employment in the agricultural industry, inc]uding
aspects of animal husbandry. In this matter, it does not appear that he was involved in any
decisipn mal;_in_g or personal conduct directly related to polluting the waters Qf the state. The
Court fmds that employment alone with SLA is an insufficient reason to hold him responsible for
the conduct involved in this matter which resulted in polluting wafers of the state. However,
failures set forth in Counts V and VIII are conduc;c for which he is responsible.

ASSESSMENT OF MONETARY DAMAGES
In its decision on motions for summary judgment, the Court previously
determined that Plaintiff Would prevail on several clé;ims in the complaint. Therefore, discussion
about the extent of damages and purposes to be accomplished therefrom is appropriate.
Where it is determined that pollution violations exist in violation of the PTO and

applicable water standards, R.C. 903.16(D)(3) provides for imposition of civil penalties in the
way of monetary fines:

(3) A person who has committed a violation for which the attorney general may bring an
action for a civil penalty under division (D)(1) or (2) of this section shall pay & civil



penalty of not more than ten thousand dollars per v101atlon Each day that 2 VlOlat]()n
continues constitiites a separate viclation. , '

Where it is determined that pollution violations exist in violation of the NPDES
and applicable water pollution standards, R.C. 6111.09 provides for imposition of civil penalties
in the way of monetary fines:

§ 6111.09. Civil penaitles for water poi!utmn control violations

(A) Any person who violates section 6111 07 of the Re\nsed Code shall pay a civil
penalty of not more than ten thousand dollars per day of violation. Any person who,
purposely violates section 6111.10 or 6111.11 of the Revised Code shall pay a civil
penalty of fifty dollars for a first violation and a civil penalty of not more than five
hundred doflars for each subsequent violation ocoumng wzthm twelve months of the first
violation.

\R}hen the Court finds that. a Defendant has violated terms of the PTO and/or fhe
NPDES plan, both oontfai‘y to pfovisions in Chaoter 9 and Chapter 6.1 of the Olﬁo Revisod Code,
~ the Court is réquiréd to 'order rﬁonetazy fines. [cifations omftfed.] The amount of tho moﬁetaz&
penalty is within the Court’s di.soretion and should serve the purpose of doten‘fng future o
wolatwns The amount should ot be S0 ordmary that it booomes an antlczpated or acoepted cost
of doing business. State ex rel Brown v. Dayton Malleable (1982) 1 01110 St.3d 151, Other
purposes and factors to con31der are outhned in Stafe ex rel. Celebrezze . Thermal—Tron, Ine.
(1992), 71 Chio Aop.Bd 1. Iﬁducemenfé to achieve foture complianoo with regulatofy s.ohomes
should be conéﬁdefod, aé éhould e.ffort.s':a;'t nﬁt.i'gati.on. S?ote of Ohio y. Tri@S’tcife Grou?,"In.c."
2004-01110-4441 S | |

| The unposztzon of monetary penalnes herem con31dors the pumtxve and

rehabilitative purposes to be served. However, the ana1y31s used by the Court has been on ’the

penaltles unposed on all counts, notonan md1v1dual basis. Furﬂler when the same conduct
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violates both ODA regulations (Title 9) and OEPA regulations (Title 61), penalties are awarded
for each regulatory violation. ‘
IMPOSITION OF INFJUNCTIVE RELIEF
.Where it is determined that pollution violations exist in violation of the PTO and
“applicable water standards, R.C. 903.16( C.) provides for imposition of injunctive relief:

( C) The attorney general, upon the written request of the director, shall bring an action
for an injunction in any court of competent jurisdiction against any person violating or
threatening to violate section 903.02, 903.03, or 903.04 of the Revised Code; the terms
and conditions of a permit to install, permit fo operate, or review compliance certificate,
including the requirements established under division ( C ) of section 903.06 or division
(A) of section 903.07 of the Revised Code; rules adopted under division (A) of section
903.10 of the Revised Code; or an order issued under division (B) of this section.

Where it is determined that poltution violations exist in violation of the NPDES
and applicable water pollution standards, R.C. 6111.07 provides for imposition of injunctive

relief:

§ 6111.07. Prohibited acts - prosecutions and injunction by attorney general

(A) No person shall violate or fail to perform any duty imposed by sections 6111.01 to
6111.08 of the Revised Code or violate any order, rule, or term or condition of a permit
issued or adopted by the director of environmental protection pursuant to those sections.
Each day of violation is a separate offense.

(B) The attorney general, upon the written request of the director, shall prosecute any
person who violates, or who fails to perform any duty imposed by, sections 6111.01 to
6111.08 of the Revised Code or who violates any order, rule, or condition of a permit
issued or adopted by the director pursuant to those sections.

The attorney general, upon written request of the director, shall bring an action for an
injunction against any person violating or threatening to violate this chapter or violating
or threatening to violate any order, rule, or condition of a permit issued or adopted by the
director pursuant to this chapter. In an action for injunction to enforce any final order of
the director brought pursuant to this section, the finding by the director, after hearing, is
prima-facie evidence of the facts found therein.



With regard to the purposes for the injunctive relief, the Court acknowledges the
legislative purposes to be accomplished by environmental laws and regulations involved herein.
The credible testimony of Robert Miltner [PL. Ex. 797 and exhibits related thereto [P1. Ex. 80, 81]
capably demonstrated the detriments to water quality and aquatic life as a result of pollutants in
surface waters of the staté. The Court notes that persuasive arguments were made by the
Defendants regarding the difficulties in proving the precise cause of the pollution and direct
damages related therefrom. Other possible sources of pollutants include defectjﬁé private
sanitaﬁon systems and p'érmitted efftuents from municipal waste water treé.trrieﬁt plants [Def. Ex.
K,L M, N, O, P] and the Piaint__iff overstates ifs case by laying blame solely at the feet of agri-
business interests. [The channelization of the Wabash River due to dredging and tree clearing
practices by governmental e;:ﬂ:ities has léng been suspected of deteriorating water quality and
habitation for aguatic life.] Nonetheless, the exisfence of poor quality water in the Wabash
River basin and the Stillwater River basm is undisputed — and the causes thereof are clearly
within the regulatory duties emzusted to ODA and OEPA

'~ Based on the Court’s prevxous ﬁndmgs that various Defendants have v101ated
terms of the PTO and the NPDES plan, both contrary to provisions in Chapter 9 and Chapter 61
of the Ohio Revised Code, the Court is authorized to issue injunctive _rélief in favor of the State
of Ohio, as more particularly described in the conclusion bélo_w. Such injunctions é:fe designed
to improve water quahty and accomphsh the Ieglslatlve purposes assi gned to ODA and OEPA
_ AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
| In theif moﬁén for summary judgment, tile Deféﬁdants clai.me(.i.ﬂ:lat Plaintiff

cannot pursue claims set forth in Counts 1, 2,21 and 22 since R.C. 6111.64(F)(3) exempfs

farming activities from water pollution regulation. R.C. 6111.04(F)(3) provides:
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(F) This section does not apply to any of the following:
(3) Application of any materials to land for agricaltural purposes or runoff of the

materials from that application or pollution by animal waste or soil sediment, including
attached substances, resulting from farming, silvicultural, or earthmoving activities
regulated by Chapter 307. or 1511. of the Revised Code.

However, the Court previously determined that the exception of R.C.
6111.04(F)(3) does not give agribusiness in general, or the Defendants in particular, carte
blanche exemption from the legislative purpose and societal benefits of abating water pollution.
Such reasoning was based on R.C. 1511.021, OAC 1501:15-5-01 and OAC 1501 :15-5-05. The
Court would have concurred if SLA had obtained an “operation and management plan” for its
agri;:ultural enterprise from the Soil and Water Conservation Distﬁct and had complied with the
plan in the operation of its agri-business. In the absence of such plan, the provisions anﬁ :
| protections of R.C. 1515 ére not applicable herein, and regulates of R.C. 6111 are enforceable
against the Defendants.

MERITS OF THE COMPLAINT
Count I

Allegation: Causing Pollution to Waters of the State from the Ansonia
Facility in July, 2003 in violation of R.C. 6111. In the decision regarding summary judgment
as filed on November 17, 2009, the Court granted summary judgment in favor of the State of
Okhio on this count. R.C. 6111.01(H) includes as “waters of the state” accumulations of water on
the surface that border the drainage ditches of a state highway, such as State Route 1 18, which
was involved herein in 2003. Additional proof was not necessary at trial. "fhe Court again finds

that the Plaintiff prevails on this Count against SLA and Rick Kremer for conduct in July, 2003,

And, as Plaintiff agreed at the time of the summary judgment decision, Roman Kremer is
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determined to have had no involvement in any poliution in July, 2003. Regarding a monetary
award itisa mztlgatmg factor that the pollutlon amount in the dztch along the iughway that
flowed into the tributary to the Stlllwater River was less than the other pollutlon 1nvolved herein.
Also, the rain fall of July 4, 2003 was extra-ordinary in amount. [Def. Ex. I.] A monetary award
is assessed as follows: $5,000 fine, jointly and severally. Injunctive relief, as described below,
shall be ordered.

| - Count I

Allegation: Causing Pollution to Waters of the State from the Celina Facility
in 2006 in violation of R.C. 6111. The Court finds that SLA caused manure to_bé spread onto
land and that the manure was discharged into the Crab Branch tn'but'érﬁ to the Wabash River, a
water of the State of Ohio, in violation of provisions of R.C. 6111, The Court also finds that
Plaintiff proved that suspended particulate materials and ammonia levels were increased asa
result of the manure discharge into the Crab Branch tributary. The demonstrative evidence [Pt
Exs. 16 - 20, 52, 55, 66, 67} and testimony of the 'Qn site iﬂvestigétors was credible. The guilty
plea to criminal charges in Celina Municipal Court by SLA to pollution charges supports the
Plaintiff’s allegation as to Hability of SLA. [PL Ex. 9] Any possible tampering with water
samples due to the storage facility being unlocked or due to possible access by Sthers does ot
convince the Court that‘t.here was any actual tampering with the water samples. .Fiirth'ér, while
other livestock confinement facilities are located in the immediate ared, there was 16 evidence of
any simultaneous or recent distribution of manure onto the fields in the surrounding area which
might raise a credible question abotit the source of the pollution.

While there was no direct proof of negative impacts on aquatic life as a result of
the spill, such as dead fish, the testimony Robert Miltner and circumstantial evidence is
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persuasive that the ammonia and suspended: particulate materials in the manure caused negative
conditions for stream vertebrates and other life forms in the Crab Branch. [PL Exs. 78, 80, 81 ]

As conchuded in the decision regarding semmary judgment, proof of the discharge ..
does not cﬁst for November 29, 2006, However, proof does exist for violations on Novembef
30, 2006 and December 1, 2006. Plaintif prevails on this Count against SLA and Rick Kremer.
The volume of pollutant and extent of watershed involved are exacerbating factors in setting ‘
damages. A monetary award ié assessed as follows: $7,500 .ﬁne for November 29, 2006 and
$7,500 fine for December 1, 2006, joinﬁy and severally. [Total fine of $15,000.] Injunctive
relief, as described. below, shall be ordered.

Count 111 |

Allegation: Causing Violations of Ohio Water Quality Standards in 2006 at
the Celina Facility. In Count II, the Court determinéd that pollutior occurred in the Crab
Branch in violation of R.C. 6111. However, does proof of pollution create a pér se violation of
OAC 3745-1-04? This section provides as follqws:

3745-1-04 Criteria applicable to all waters.

The following general water quality criteria shall apply to all surface waters of the state
including mixing zones. To every extent practical and possible as determined by the
director, these waters shall be;

(A) Free from suspended solids or other substances that enter the waters as a result of
human activity and that will settie to form putrescent or otherwise objectionable sludge
deposits, or that will adversely affect aquatic life;

(B) Free from floating debris, oil, scum and other floating materials entering the waters as
a result of human activity in amounts sufficient to be unsightly or cause degradation;

( C) Free from materials entering the waters as a result of human activity producing color,
odor or other conditions in such a degree as to create a nuisance;

(D) Free from substances entering the waters as a result of human activity in
concenfrations that are toxic or harmful to human, animal or aguatic life and/or are
rapidly lethal in the mixing zone;
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(E) Free from nutrients entering the waters as a result of human activity in concentra’aons
that create nuisance growths of aquatic weeds and algae;
* % K

As the Court previously conciﬁded in the decision regarding summary j_tidgment, proof of the
existence of inc;reased ammonia levels, the existence of increased parﬁculate méteﬁa}s, and/or
the'existence of the “free froms" listed above cannot be.used to establish violations of water
quality standards set forth in OAC 3745-1-04. Proof of polluﬁaﬁts being introduced into sta’lte
waters can be used .to establish violations R.C. 6111 and the PTOQ, but the existence of the “free
froms” hsted above do not consutute separate violations, Based on the su:mnary judgment
decision, Defendants prevail on Count III regarding allegad v101at10ns of water quahty standards
set forth in OAC 3745-1-04. [The Court notes the Plaintiff’s postamal briefing to the contrary
and exhortatmns to reconmder however, Whe‘fher the trial court was correct or not, the law of the
case was  determined in the summary Judgment motion- and remains th:oughout the tnal ]
Count IV

Allegation: Failure to Maintain Adequaté Oéeraﬁng Lévels in.z.t Fabricated
Structure at the Ansonia Facility. The Plaintiff éontends fha% ﬁere must be six inches ((% ") of
unused storage space {(known as free board) in the manure pits under the hog confinement
buildings. ThlS requxrement is alleged to exist by reason of 0AC 901 10-2- 081 and thc PTO.

However, the report for the inspection of May 20, 2_005 [PL Ex. 86} indicates on
page 8 that the szx—mch ﬁ'eeboard requﬂement IS not apphcable to the "buﬁdmgs A sumlar
potation is found in a later 2005 inspection report. {See Pl Ex 87. ] And-the mspectmn report for

2006 indicates the ﬁ*eeboard requirement is twelve mches (12")

L0AC 901:10-2- O8{AY )by provtdes that * [t]he operating level of fabricated structures must not exceed the level that provides
adequate storzge to contain a precipitation event a5 required in rules 901:10-3-02 to 901:10-3-06 of the Adminisirative Code, plus an additional

sl inches of freeboard, unless the fabricated structure is designed and maintained for solid manure and is not subject to precipitation.”
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Based on the ambiguity and variance in application of the regul ations, the Court
finds that the Plaintiff failed to establish the applicable standards for freeboard height. The
Defendants prevail on this Count, [While the Court does not determine the free board heigilt, and
premtfning clarification from Plaintiff, future excuses based on ambignity may be questionable;}

Count V

Alleg:iﬁon: Failure to Properly Conduct and/or Document Insﬁ:écﬁons of
Manure Storage Facilities in the Operating Record at the Ansonia Facility. In its prior
decision regarding summary judgment, the Court determined that the frequency of record
keeping requirements was a monthly basis. See OAC 901:10-1-09.> This conclusion is again
adopted as the law of the case. Therefore, any month wherein an inspection occurred and was
documented is considered to be compliance with the inspection requirements.‘ Plaintiff’s
contention that inspections were needed each week is rejected since changes mandated. by the

Ohio Administrative Code are not self implementing. Specific, advance notice io a permif Eoider

2901:10-1-09. Permit modifications

1.{A} No facility or activity regulated by a permit to instail or a permit to operate or a NPDES permit under this chapter shal be modified unless
the modification 15 in compliance with this rude. When a permit is moedified, only the corditions subject to modification are reopened. A draft
parmit incorporating the proposed changes must be prepared and is subject to public notice and public participation procedures as set forth in
ries 301:10-6-01 to 901:10-6-06 of the Administrative Code. .

(B) The director may propose to modify a permit and may seek the consent of the owner or aperator modifying the permit, the director may
maodify a permit for the following reasons which include, but are not limited to:

(1) Information submitied by the owner or operator requesting to modify the permit;

(2} Information obtained through inspections;

(3} A permit is reviewed by the director, o7

{4) Other causes as provided in 40 CFR section 122.62(z) (2005).

{C) If the direotor seeks to modify the permit with the consent of the owner or operator and the owner or operator does not consent to the

director's modification, the director shall issue a notice of the proposed modified penmit with the opportunity for an adjudication hearing in
accordance with Chapter 119, of the Revised Code.

(D) If the director sesks to modify the permit without seeking the consent of the owner or operator, the director shall issue a notice of the
proposed modified permit with the opportunity for an adjudication hearing in accordance with Chapter 119 of the Revised Code, See OAC
901:10-1-09 above,
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that changes have begn made to the.ﬁ‘equcpcy of _inspecﬁo.ns is a condition precedent to
enforcement o_f the Weeldy:_inspections. The Court_cam_xot _c_pncl__u_de that the PTO was modified
by mere opergti;qn of law When changes to jthe OAC were a;;opted. Given the fact that on-site
inspec_tions are peljfpnr_led at least semni-gpnually, and in view of the ongoing, close relaﬁons_hip
between all perrﬁif holders and regulators, notice o.f the change could easily have been made by
Plaintiff. {It is a faint argument lthat the enormity of Plaintiff’s agencies could not have notified
SLA (and apparently 150 other permit holders in Ohio} of the chgnges to the OAC requiring
weekly mspectlon requirements. ]

Regarding the substance of the allegatlons as the trial testimony 'estabhshed
extensive record keeping _reqm:em_f_:nts exist for animal f¢eding operat_io_ns licens\:d by the state.
The P.T O [Pl Ex. 2] sets forth these requirements, as does CAC 9(_).1 :_1 0-2-16, W_h_i_ch id_entify the
contents of the records (eg. types of structures to be insp_e_,cted, nature of the measurements, ete.).
Testimony was presented on these allegatlons The Court has cons1dered various exh1b1ts [PL.
Exs. 30 - 35; Def Ex. R.] The Court finds the followmg inspection violations (within the time

periods set forth in Count Five of the complaint) :

Bamns 1 and 2 (manure levels, structure and operability) . -~ 19 months
Barns 3 and 4 (manure levels and sn'ucture) 15 "r'ho'ﬁth:s
Manure storage ponds 1 & 2 (manure levels and operab1hty)3 ) months

The Court finds that the Plaintiff prevails agamst SLA Rick K:remer and Rlchard F1sher A

monetary award is assessed as follows: $100 per violation each month for $3400 fines against

3Thé Coust previously determined that both ponds worked tdgeihéf as one unit and that only one
inspection was required. Ses Decision filed November 17, 2009 at page 7.
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SLA and Rick Kremer, jointly and severally, and an additional fine of $350 against Richard
Fisher. Injunctive relief, as described below, shall be ordered.
Count VI

Aﬂegatiog: Land Application of Manure in _Violaﬁon of the Terms and
Conditions of the PTO. The Plaintiff alleges that SLA appﬁed mortality compost (a dead hog
carcass which is c.onsidered manure) to land on May 6, 2006 when the PTO required incineration
of the carcass. The conduct is also alleged td violate OAC 90i :10-2-15. Based on the Court’s
decision on summary judgment, set forth on page 7 thereof, and as agreed by Defendants, the
Court again determines that Plaintiff shall prevail on this allegation against SL.A and Rick
Kremer. Roman Kremer is not included in liability since his duties and knowledge of applicable
regulations were not proven to the Court’s satisfaction, A monetary award is assessed a
follows: §500 fine against SLA and Rick Kremer, jointly and severally. Injunctive reh'éf, as
described below, shall be ordered,

| Count VII

Allegation: Disposal of Mortality in Violation of the Terms and Conditions of
the PTO. Reiated to the facts in Count Six, the Plaintiff alleges that the SLA changed the PTO
from incineration fo composﬁng Wiﬂ:mut notice and approval by thé ODA. In its decision on the
request for summary judgment, the Court determined that such operational changes did not
require notice to, and approval by, the ODA. See also OAC 901:10-1-09; PL. Ex. 86- letter at
page 2 and inspection report at page 3; Def. Exs. H, I. The Defendants prevail on this Count.

Count VIII
Allegation: Failure to Maintain Vegetation on anrd Around the Manufe

Storage Ponds at the Ansonia Facility. The Plaintiff aflleges that on December 4, 2006, SLA
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permitted grass and vegetation to grow approximately 18_t0 24 inches high around the manure
storage pond. The decision herein is governed by application of OAC 901:10-2-8 (A)(4), which
requires inspections as follows: |

() Inspect the protective vegetative cover and any other approved means or materials for

erosion conirol to determine that cover is maintained on all disturbed areas (lagoon or_
pond embankments, berms, pipe runs, erosion control areas, etc.).

(k) Ensure that any emerging vegetation such as trees shrubs and other woody species
shall not be allowed to grow on the pond or lagoon dikes or side slopes. Pond or lagoon

- areas are to be kept mowed and accessible unless these areas are grassed waterways or
buffers that manage precipitation and runoff.

From the testimony presented, and based on a review of the exhibits {I;I Exs. 22C,
22D, 22K}, the Court finds that SLA failed to properly mow vegetation around the edges of the
storage pond. The condition of the vegetation is such that inspection of the mterior bank of the
pond is not possible, thereby preventing opportunities to detect erosion, cracking or structizral
wealm_tess. ‘However, the proof did not establish the duration of this violation; but from the
evidence of the size of plants and extent of growth, the Court determines that 30 days of failure j
oceurred. The Court finds that the Plaintiff prevails against SLA, Rick Kremer and Richard
Fisher. A monetary award is assessed as follows: $1,000 fine against SLA and Rick Kremer,
jointly and severally, and additional fine of $250 against Richard Fisher. Injurictive relief; as
described below, shall be ordered. [The testimony and post-trial briefing included a violation for
September, 2007, but such date was not alleged in thé’cdmplaintr and was necessarily disregarded
by the court.}

Count IX

Allegation: 2007 Land Appﬁéaﬁon' of 'Mam&e in Violation of the Terms and
Conditions of the PTO - Ansonia Facility. This allegation involves conduct that oécurred on
February 27 and 28, 2007 where the State claims that Roman Kremer as an employee of 'SLRMV
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spread manure from SLA on a 36 acre tract owned by a third party, and on a 6 acre tract owned
by SLA, and committed the following violations: (1) distribution at a rate in excess of 5,000
galions per acre (this limit was required because the land was froze.ﬁ and there was less than 80%
residue cover on the land); (2) failure to monitor drainage afier the application; (3) disttibutién of
manure when weather conditions included 50% or higher probability of precipitation within 24
hours after distribution; (4j failure to prevent ponding and nm,uoff;. (5) failure to timely ﬁotify
regulators after pollution ran off the field into waters of the state; and (6) failure to provide
written reports of the incident.

The testimony and exhibits [Pl. Exs. 37 - 45] demonstrate that SLA and SLRM
~ failed to follow regulations regarding spreading manure on both tracts of frozen fields, incloding
spreading cxcessivé quantities of manure on frozen fields with low residue cover, failing to
prevent ponding and run-off, failing to comply with weather restrictions, failing to monifor,
failing to timely notify regulators after the run-off, failing to timely provide written Feports.
Plaintiff has proven its case on these allegations against SLA, Rick Kremer and Neal Kremer.
The Court rejects Defendants’ argument that SLRM acted in its sole judgment to spread the
manure since the operations a_fe so closely related, there was proof of dual employment of Neal
Kremer by SLRM and SLA, the ownership of 6 acres by SLA and the obligation of SLA to
comply with regulations. A monetary award is assessed as follows: $'I 0,000 fine for February
28, 2007 against SLA and Rick Kremer, jointly and severally, and $10,000 fine for March 1,
2007 against SL.A and Rick Kremer, jointly and severally. [Total fine of $20,000.] An
additional $1,000 fine for February 28, 2007 against Neal Kremer and $1,000 fine for March 1,

2007 against Neal Kremer are awarded. [Total fine of $2,000.] Injunctive relief, as described

below, shall be ordered.

-17~



Cou;;t X

All_eg_;_ttiqn: Land Application of Manure in Violation of Precipitation Related
Conditions on NPDES General Permit — Ansonia Facility. This Count is related 1o the facts
of Count IX but the Plaintiff alleges that the conduct was a vioi_ation of the provisions of R.C. .
6111, More speciﬁcally,.Plainﬁiff alleges manure distribution when weather conditions, within
24 hours after the application, exceeded a 50% probability of precipitation. From the testimony
and exhibits [1_?1. Exs 42, 43], the Cou_rf finds that the Plaintiff has proven its case by a |
preponderance of the evidence as té manure distribution on February 28, 2007 because there was
a 60% .c‘hance pf precipitation duriilg_ the next day and 70% probability the next night. The
Defendants did not contest the facts regarding the weather forecast or the spreading of manure.
Instead, Défgndants_claim that the duty to comply was piaced on Phoenix Farms since the
manure was provided to Phoenix Farms for distribution on its land and that the distribution
oceurred at its direction. However, the Court finds that compliaﬁce with NPDES permits rests
upon the permittee and its representatives who pe_rfc;_nne_d the distribution. Plaintiff has proven. -
its case on these allegations against SLA, Rick Kremer and Neal Kremer. A monetary award is -
assessed as follows: $:5 ,000 fine against SLA and Rick Kremer, jointly and severally.  An

additional $500 fine is assessed against Neal Kremer. Injunctive relief, as described below, shall

)

be orde.r_e__d_. )
. CountXL . =
A]lgg.aﬁon_:_Land_App_licaﬁqn on Frozen and/or Snow Covered Ground .-
Without Prior Approval of the ODA — Ansonia Facility. This Count is related to the facts of - -
Counts IX and X but the P_Iaintiﬂ _alleges that the conduct was a vioiationlof the érovisions of -

OAC 901:10-2-14(G)(1)(a) wherein Plaintiff claims that advance notice of distribution onto
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_ frozen ground must be given. In its decision regarding summary judgment, the Court previéusly
determined that notice was not necessary regarding distribution onto the 36 acre tract known as
the Phoenix farms land. However, based on the exhibits and inferences ﬁ*o.m.the testimony, the
Court finds that Plaintiff has proven the failure to provide prior notice of manure distribution as
to the 6 acre tract. Plaintiff has proven its case on these allegations against SLA, Rick Kremer |
and Neal Kremer. A ménetaly award is assessed as follows: $2,000 fine against SLA and Rﬁck
Kremer, jointly and severally. An additional $200 fine is assessed against Neal Kremer.
Injunctive relief, as described below, shall be ordered. |
Count XI1

Allegation: Exceeding Appiication Rate in Violation of the PTO — Ausonia
Facility. In its decision on summary judgment, the Court previously determined that the Plaintiff
would prevail on the claim that Defendants failed to limit land application of Iiﬁuid manure to
5,000 gallons per acre on the surface of frozen or snow covered ground. See OAC 901: 10-2-
14(G)(1)(c). This conduct is alleged to violate OAC 901 :10-1-10( C ) and (G).

Based upon the testimony, the Court finds that there was excessive distribution as
to the 36 acre tract, but no excessive distribution on the 6 acre tract, [PL Ex. 10, 44.] Regarding
allegations pertaining to the 36 acre tract, judgment is granted in favor of Plaintiff against SLA,
Rick Kremer and Neal Kremer. A monetary award is assessed as follows: $2,000 fine against
SLA and Rick Kremer, jointly and severally. An additional $200 fine is assessed against Neal
Kremer. Imjunctive relief, as described below, shall be ordered.

Court XJI1
Allegation: Exceeding the Application Rate in Violation of the Terms and

| Conditions of NPDES General Permit — Ansonia facility. Based on the determination of facts

~19-~



and conclusions of law incorporated in Count XII above, the Court finds that the Plaintiff has
proven its case by a preponderance of the _evi_c_iex}gt_a as to the 36 acre tract. Plaintiff has proven its
case on these allegations against SLA, Rick Kreﬁler and Neal Kremer. A monefary award is
'as;sessed as follows: $2,000 fine against SLA and Rick Kremer, jointly and severally. An
additional $200 fine is assesseﬁ against Nea_l. .Kremer. Injunctive relief, as described below, shall
be ordered. | ,
Count XIV

Allegation: Land Application of Manure on Frozen and/or Snow Covered
Ground With Less Than 80% Residue Cover — Ansonia Facility. To prove the conduct
described in the above aliegatior; the Ple_tintiff provided proof of the nature and consistency of the
- ground cover by C}fuist_ine Pence and Andrew Ety, ﬁe_:ld inspectors for Plaintiff. No precise,
slide-rule analysis was provided - ror _e:_cpected. By.its nature, the testimony as to percentage of
ground cover was si_zbj ective._ qun areview of the evidence, fche Court is not convinced that the
residue cover on the _ground was less than 80% on Fébruary 28, 2QO7. The Defendants prevail on
this Count, [The Court notes fchat Plaintiffs’ counsel agreed that _a directed verdict should be
granted for Defendants as to ﬁolations which might hav_e_oct:uxred on February 27, 2007.]

| Count XV |

Aﬂgg_atiqn: Land_ Applica?ion of Manure on Frozen and/or Snow Covered
Grouﬁd Wit}z Less Than 90% Residue Cover in Violation of NPDES General Permit — .
- Ansonia Faciiity: As stated in Count XIV R _the _tc_stim_ony by Christine Pence was subjective
regarding the nature and consistency of the ground cover. However, the testimony of Ms. Pence
was consistent, credible and based on her years of experience and personal observations. Upon

review of the evidence, the Court finds that it is convinced that there was not at least 90% cover
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residue on the land at the time of the manure distribution on February .28, 2007. Therefore, the
Court finds that the Plaintiff proved this allegation by a preponderance of the evidence as to
conduct on February 28, 2007. Plaintiff has proven its case on these allegations against SLA,
Rick Kremer and Neal Kremer. A monetary award is assessed as follows: $2.000 fine against
SLA and Rick Kremer, jointly and severally. An additional $200 fine is assessed agéi;nét Neal
Krémer. Injunctive relief, as described below, shall be or&ered. [The Court notes that
Plaintiffs’ counsel agreed that a directed verdict should be granted for Defendants as 1o violations
which might have occurred on February 27, 2007.]
Count XVI

Allegation: Failure o Properly Monitor Application Field Surface })réinage
at the Ansonia facility. The Plaintiff’s witnesses were not present on February 27 and 28, 2007
when the manure was distributed and could not testify whether field tiles were monitored at the
time of the manure distribution, as required by OAC 901:1 0-2-14(G)(2). Records of the event
fail to indicate that the tiles were monitored. [PL. Exs. 44, 45 .] Therefore, any evidence of non-
compliance is circumstantial and inferential. However, to contradict any iﬁferences, Kyle Stegall
testified that he checked the boundaries of the field; he further testified that he did not know how
or whether to complete any reports. This direct evidence counters the Plaintiff's ciréumstantial
evidence and reasonable inferences therefrom. Therefore, the Plaintiff has failed to prove iis case
on this Count regarding monitoring field tiles. Defendants prevail on this Count,

Count XVII
Allegation: Failure to Properly Monitor Application Field Surface Drainage

in Violation of the Terms and Condjtions of NPDES General Permit at the Ansonia
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Facility. Based on the Court’s findings in Count X VI, the Court finds that the Plaintiff has failed
to prove this Count.
Count XVII

Aﬂegaﬁog: Fg_i__lurg to Properly Notify ODA after 2007 Pollution Spill at -
Ansonia F aci}.it_y. Regarding Count IX, the Court determined that excessive manure was
distributed on a 36 acre tract on February 27 and 28, 2007. This Count alleges that SLA failed to -
properly notify ODA of the violation. Immediate notice is required by the PTO, Part C (Bates
page 81) and OAC 901:10-1-10(G). The obligation is placed on SLA to immediately notify
ODA of the spill. While SLA denied any knowledge of the spill, the Court’s determination that a
spill occurred necgssaﬁly_rcsults in a conclusion that the duty to report also existed. In this case,
there .is no pI_'QOf that SLA provided immediate potification to ODA. To the contrary, the spill
was discover@d_ by ODA inspectors on March I, 2007. The Court finds that the Plaintiff has
proven this allegatiox_x bya prepqnder_ance of the evidence against SLA, Rick Kremer and Nezﬁ L
Kremer. A Iﬁongtary award_is_assessed as follows: $2,000 fine against SLA and Rick Kremer,
jomﬂy and severally. An éddiﬁqna_i $200 fme is assessed against Neal Kremer. Injunctive relief,
as described below, _shal} be ordered.

. ComiXK
| Aﬂega_ﬁ_ox__l: Fg_ﬂure to Properly Notify OEPA after 2007 Pollution Spill at -

Ansonia Facility. A_ga_in_r_qga;dipg Count IX, the Court detcnnim_:d that excessive manure was
distributed on a 36-acre tract on February 27 and 28, 2007. This Count alleges that SLA failed to
properly goﬁfy QEPA__Qf the yiglation. Oral nqt_ice to OEPA within two hours after a spill is
required by th_e NPDES permit, and written n_o_tvice_to OEPA within 14 days after f; spill is also . &=

required by the NPDES permit. The obligation is placed on SLA to provide the notice. While
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SLA denied any knowledge of the spill, the Court’s determination that a spill occurred
necessarily results in a conclusion that the duty to report also existed. In this case, there is no
- proof that SLA provided timely notifications to OEPA. ’fhe Court finds that the Plaintiff has
ﬁroven this allegation by a preponderéﬁce of the evidence against SLA, Rick Kremer and Neal
Kremer. A monetary award is assessed as follows: $2,000 fine against SLA and Rick Kremer,
jointly and severally. An additional $20‘O fine is assessed against Neal Kremer. Injunctive reiiéf,
as described below, shall be ordered.
" Count XX

Allegation: Polluting Waters of the State in 2007 in Violation of the NPDES
Permit. This Count again concerns conduct that occurred on Pebhiary 27 and 28, 2007. Based
on the Court’s prior findings that manure waste spilled off the land and into waters of the state,
the Court necessarily ﬁhds that the NPDES permit was also violated. The Plaintiff has proven
this allegation by a preponderance of the evidence against SLA, Rick Kremer and Neal Krenﬁér.
A monetary award is assessed as follows: $2,000 fine against SLA and Rick Kremer, jointly and
séverally. An additional $200 fine is assessed against Neal Kremer. Injunctive relief, as
described below, shall be ordered.

Count XXT

Allegation: Pollutiug Water of the State in 2007 in Violation of Revised Code
Chapter 6111 - Ansonia Facility. This Count again concerns conduct that occurred on
February 27 and 28, 2007. Based on the Court’s prior findings that manure waste spilled off the
land and into the waters of the state on February 28, 2007 and March 1, 2007, the Court
necessarily finds that R.C. 6111.07 and OAC 3745-1-04 ( C) were violated. [The NPDES permit

1s based on these codified laws.]' The Plaintiff has proven this allegation by a preponderance of
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the evidence as to the A_n_sogia facility against SL.A, Rick Kremer and Neal Kremer. A monetary
award 18 assesged_as follows: $2,000 fine againsf SLA and Rick Kremer, jointly and severally.
An additional $200 fine is assessed against Neal Kremer. Injunctive relief, as described below,
shall be ordered. [The amount of fines are mitigated due to larger fines being imposed on Count
IX for violations on the same dates.] |
| Count XX11

A]iegation: Violations of the NPDES Permit in 2007 resulting in run-off and
ponding. This Count again concerns conduct that occurred on February 27 and 28, 2007. The
Cburt previously det_¢rmined that- manure run-off occurred and that the manure entered waters of
the state on February 28, 2007. The Court specifically finds, based on the testimony and
photographic evidence [PL Exs. 38A - 38H], that there was run-off and ponding of the liguified
manute. The Piaintiff .has proven this allegation by a preponderance of the evidence against
SLA, Rick Kremer and Neal Kremer, A monetary award is assessed as follows: $2,000 ﬁner
agail;st SLA and Rick Kremer, jointly and severally. An additional $2QO fine is assessed against
Neal Kremer. {Mitiga_ﬁng circumstances exist since prompt notice would not likely ha§e reduced
the amount of pollution into waters of the state.] Injunctive relief, as described below, shall be
ordered.

Count XXITI

Aﬂggaﬁon:: Failure to Provide Manure Nutrient Analysis to Reéipients of . .
Man_u__re. In c_:ongidering p;e—tlfial motions for sumgmary judgmex_lt, the Court previously
determined that. SLA failed lto pro\{ide re_qi_pients of manure with nutrient analysis related to the
manure. See OAC 501:10-2-11 (A)(2). [The apparent purpose of this information is to help the

recipient understand soil fertility with regard to m_apaging their own fertility and nutrient needs.] .
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The Court granted summary judgment in favor of Plail;tiff. ‘The Plaintiff prévaﬂs against SLA,
Rick Kremer and Neal Kremer. A monetary award is assessed as follows: $1,000 fine against
SLA and Rick Kremer, jointly and severally. An additional $100 fine is assessed against Neal
Kremer. Injunctive relief, as described below, shall be ordered.
IMPOSITION OF MONETARY AWARDS

The Court finds that the nuﬁlerous violations by SLA are due t0 an on-going lack
of attention to details of the PTO and NPDES i)errnit at the Ansonia facility. This inattention is
attributed to its principal, Rick Kremer, He has operated SLA, and been personally involved in
various aspects of animal confinement operations, for most of his life. His inattention is not due
to lack of knowledge of regulatory requirements. Recalcitrance with regulators is noted,
including repeatcd commumications of misunderstandings or cﬁsagreement with instructions and
. interpretations from inspectors, However, blatant disregard for the purposes of fegulations does'
not seem to be the case. Efforts to eamn profits in order to maintain SLA’s agri-business appear
to motivate his lack of regulatory compliance (which is understandable — but not acceptéble’ - in
the current economics of farming). His failure to foresee storage capabilities and to plan for
proper manure disposal appear: to be the primary cause of disposing of manure under the
conditioné involved herein which ultimately were determined to violate regulatory mandates.

Neal Kremer and Roman Kremer are both young men who have chosen to follow
their family’s involvement in agﬁ«ﬁusiness. Neither appear to be recalcitrant, but they did not
appear overly eager to fully comprehend and implement Eoth the spirit and the provisions of
ODA and OEPA regulations. Typically, their violations of regulatory mandates were motivated

by obedience to their father’s ill-advised directions and attitude.
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Richard F isher’s culpability is limited herein due to the lack of decision-making
authority insti}led #po_n him. While self-described as an operations manager; his primary duties
appear to be r’g(_:ordnkeeping and regulatory respbn_ses. Admittedly, there were instances where he
should have more fervently notified Rick Kremer of regulatory requirements; also,. he should
have provided guidance to help anticipate manure storagé problems. However, from the
testimony, Richard Fisher’s culpability was timited.

| Regarding factors to consider réga;rding the penalty to impose, the Court was not
provided with any economic data of any economic benefit that Defendants would have received
for non~complianpe. Further, although regulatory compliance efforts and litigation enforcement
actions were evident, there was no testimony relating the actual economic costs incurred by the
Plaintiff. However, the pgﬁi_es_did stipulate that Defendants would not raise “ability to pay” as a
mitigating Qi;f;umstar;ce_:_.

Due to the lgck of prior violations, and the circumstances stated 1n the previous
paragraphs, a “bottor up” approach was used to determining the amount of the civil fine. See
United Sz‘ate,s_..v.. Gulf Park Warer Co. (D. Miss. 1998), 14 F. Supp. Zf‘d 854. The Plaintiff’s
demand for a judg_mg_:nt of $261,800 — ba_sed on maximum penalties available - was rejected by

the Com’t_. -

ITIS THEREFORE ORDERED AND DECREED that injunctive reliefis.
ordered as follows:
(1) For two years_aft_er the date of the final order herein (from the trial and/or appellate ..

court), SLA and Rick Kremer are enjoined from violating the terms and conditions of the PTO .
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the NPDES plan and applicable state laws and regulations regarding the Ansonig facility. The
Court retains continuing jurisdiction concerning compliance with this injunction,

(2) Within 90 days hereafier, SLA and Rick Kremer shall file applications with OEPA,
ODA and/or Mercer County Soil and water Conservation District for compliance with applicable
regulations for the Mercer County facility involved herein. After submitting Decessary
applications, SLA and Rick Kremer shall promptly comply with supp}ementél requests for
information and all other usual and customary steps to accomplish appropriate 1 censing of the
Mercer County facility with OEPA, ODA and/or Mercer County SWCD,

ITIS FURTHER ORDERED AND DECREED that monetary awards are
ordered as follows: | |

(1) SLA and Rick Kremer, jointly and severally, shall Ipay fines to the Clerk of Courts in
the total amount of $68,900 within 45 days hereafter. [$37,000 for EPA violations and $31,900
for ODA violations.] Following receipt, the Clerk of Courts shall forward payments to the
Plaintiff via counsel of record.

(2) Neal Kremer shall pay fines to the Clerk of Courts in the total aﬁloﬁnt of $4,400
within 45 days hereafter. [$1,700 for EPA violations and $2,700 for ODA violations.] Following
receipt, the Clerk of Courts shall forward payments to the Plaintiff via counsel of record.

(3) Richard Fisher shall pay fines to the Clerk of Courts in the total amount of $600
within 45 days hereafter. [$600 for ODA violations and $0 for EPA violations, Following
receipt, the Clerk of Courts shall forward payments to the Plaintiff via counsel of record.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED AND DECREED that payment of $60,000 of the
fines by SLA and Rick Kremer (listed in paragraph (1) above) is susbended on the following

conditions;
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(1) that SLA and Rick Ki'emcf:r comply with terms of the injunction issued herein; and

(2) that SLA and Rick Krgmer._conﬁibute $40,000 to a non-profit, charitable foundation
organized in Darke Cour_a_fy to establish an endowment fund wherein the net income shall be
- distributed by the f_oundati_oz_a to applicant(s) who provide educational programs and/or events in
Darke County which promote agricultural - environmental awareness, promote water and soil
poltution control, and promote water and soil conservati_oﬁ, such as those fhat may be encouraged
or organized by Soil and Water Cnnserv_gtidn Distﬁct, Future Farmers of America, OSU
Exténsion Office, iﬁstitutions_ of pu_‘tﬁic or private _e_ducation, etc. ..

The Court has suspended $60,000 of the fine in order to reduce animosity between
Plaintiff and Defendants, to encourage future cooperation, and to ameliorate any suspicion that
Plaintiff’s enforcement is _motiyat_ed by self-intemst in the fines. Establishment of'a $40,000
endowmént fund seeks to accomplish the same purposes. The $8,900 fine payable by SLA and
Rick Kremer to the Plaintiff acknowledges the Plaintiff’s investigative and prosecution expenses.
[$4,450 to ODA and $4,450 to OEPA.]

Violations of the above terms may subject SLA and Rick Krenier to payment of
the remaining $20,000 fine. [Pgesuming $_40;0_00 is deposited with a foundation, the remainder
suﬁj ect to ﬁ@er payment will .b_e_ $12,_550 to OEPA and $7,450 to ODA.] The Court retains
continuing jurisdiction over th(f: terms of this Order for two years after the date of the final order
herein (either from the trial court or any appellate court).

o .C_om;t cq_sts to be paid by Dt}fcndants, jointly and severafly. . -

FINAL APPEALABLE ORDER.




cc: Margaret Malone / Aaron Farmer, Ass’t. Attorneys General for Plaintiff (via U.S. mail)
Jack Van Kley, Attorney for Defendants (via U.S. mail)
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